


 

 

Board’s Report 
 
To the members, 
 
We are delighted to present the 18th Annual Report on our business and operations for the year ended 31st March 
2022:- 
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS:                                                (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021 

Revenue from Operations 13290.57 11986.31 

Other Income 274.33 255.71 

Gross Revenues 13564.90 12242.02 

Profit before Interest, Depreciation, Tax 
& Amortization (EBITDA)  

2180.14 1233.12 

Interest 56.40 115.74 

Depreciation & Amortization 135.50 176.68 

Profit before Tax 1988.23 940.69 

Provision for Tax/Deferred Tax 592.5 279.93 

Profit after Tax 1395.73 660.77 

 
REVENUES & OPERATIONAL ACHIEVMENT: 
Gross revenues for the financial year have increased to INR 139.57 million in the current year, an increase of 10.80% 
to previous year.  
 
PROFITS: 
During this year company has earned a profit after tax (PAT) of Rs. 139.57 Million. 
 
OUTLOOK: 
 
Management is positive about growth prospect of Telecom Industry in India and globally. While deployment of 5G 
network by operators will open new avenues of growth, rollout of 4G Network will still continue to meet the 
coverage and capacity gaps. With the government of India’s emphasis on “Make in India” and “Aatmanirbhar” 
Bharat, companies like us, tend to benefit the most. We are also one of the companies selected by Government for 
“Production Linked Incentive” (PLI) Scheme under MSME category. This will help us further to compete in the 
market. 
 
Enabled by our DSIR approve R&D Team, we have also tapped requirement from Indian Defence Industry recently 
and already have open Order book of around Rs 3 crore as on date from this category. This has large potential for 
us to grow. 
 
We have successfully delivered and implemented our ODAS Solution at Allahabad, Dehradun and Lucknow Airport 
for providing 2G/3G and 4G coverage of Mobile operators. With the growth in development of new Airports and 
Metros and other public spaces and requirement of ODAs in all such places, we see lots of growth avenues. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.  
 
 



 

 

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE: 
Your company is not registered with any of the recognised stock exchanges in India.  
 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
During the year under review there was no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company. 
 
Current Scenario 
 

i. Increase in Authorised Share Capital 
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company increased to Rs. 16 crores divided into 1,60,00,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10 each effective from July 04, 2022. 
 

ii. Bonus Issue 
On August 03, 2022, the Company made an allotment of 1,12,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each as fully 
paid-up bonus equity shares in the ratio of 225:1. Thereby the Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company 
increased to Rs. 11,30,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven crore thirty lacs only). 

 

DIVIDEND: 
During the year under review your company has declared and paid the dividend as follows –  
 

• Interim Dividend of Rs. 1000/- per share on 50,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- each was declared 
on February 15, 2022.  

 
TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
In terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, no unclaimed or unpaid Dividend relating to the financial 
year 2021-22 is due for remittance to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
In accordance with section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the annual return as referred in section 92(3) of the Act, for the 
financial year under review shall be placed on the website of the Company www.frogcellsat.com under the 
Downloads Section. 
 
DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 
Company’s shares are in dematerialization form with National Security Depository Limited (NSDL). 
 
FIXED DEPOSITS: 
We have not accepted any fixed deposits and no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the Balance 
Sheet date. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 
During the year under review, Company has given loan to its Wholly owned subsidiaries namely Frog Tele Private 
Limited and Pics Jump Academy Private Limited (Formally known as Frog Jump Academy Private Limited) for Rs. 
1,60,00,000 and Rs. 5,20,000 respectively. Except this, Company has not given any loan or guarantee or security 
and Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder in respect of investments made. 
 
 
 

http://www.frogcellsat.com/


 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
There is no employee, employed throughout the financial year are in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 10,200,000 or 
more, or employed for part of the year in receipt of Rs. 850,000 or more a month, under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 & its amendment thereto, therefore there 
is no statement annexed. 
 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES: 

During the year under review, company has been recruitments as per requirement from various department during 

the year. 

 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
During the year under review, all contracts or arrangements with related parties entered into at arm’s lengths basis 
and in ordinary course of business. Particulars of contract or arrangement made with related parties referred to in 
section 188 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 in prescribed form AOC-2 is appended in “Annexure– I” to the Board’s 
report. 
 
AUDITORS:   
In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules 2014 M/s. Rajan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 005945C) the Auditors of the Company shall 
hold office for a term of five years from the conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026, at a remuneration as fixed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in consultation with the Auditors. 
 
AUDITORS REPORT: 
The Auditor’s report to the shareholders on standalone and consolidated financial statement for the year ended 
March 31, 2022, does not contain any qualification, observation or adverse comment. The comments made by 
Statutory Auditors in their report for financial year ended 31st March 2022 are self-explanatory and therefore, do 
not call for any further explanation or comments from the Board. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to Section 135 of the 
Companies Act 2013. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as of March 31 2022 is as 
follows: 
 

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

MR. SATISH BHANU TRIVEDI Chairman Non-Executive Director 

MR. KONARK TRIVEDI Member Executive Director 

 
The committee was further reconstituted with effect from September 05 2022.The current composition of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as of the date of this report is as follows: 
 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

MR. KONARK TRIVEDI Chairperson Managing Director 

MR. SATISH BHANU TRIVEDI Member Non-Executive Director 

MR. RANJIT DATTA Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

 
 
 



 

 

An Annual Report on CSR containing particulars as per annexure prescribed in the CSR Rules made thereunder is 
annexed herewith as Annexure IV. 
  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma will retire by rotation 

at the ensuing annual general meeting and is being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking 

approval of the members for the re-appointment of Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma as director of the Company shall be 

placed before the members of the Company at the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company. 

 

Your Board has appointed Mrs. Sonal Trivedi as an Additional Non-Executive Director of the Company on 3rd June 

2022. Pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, she shall hold the office up to the date of 

the ensuing annual general meeting and being eligible to offered herself for appointment as director by the 

members in the annual general meeting. 

 

Also note that, Mr. Barathy Sundaram (DIN - 01175376 )and Mr. Ranjit Datta (DIN - 07121651 ) are appointed as an 

Additional Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 19th August 2022 and Mr. Ajay Kalayil Chacko 

(DIN - 05213596 ) was appointed as Additional Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 01 

September, 2022 and to regularized as Independent Directors (Non – Executive) for a period of five years with effect 

from 19th August, 2022 and 01 September, 2022 in the ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held on 30th 

September, 2022 

 

In addition to the above appointments Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra is appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company 

and he has resigned from his existing posts of Company Secretary and directorship.  Mr. Konark Trivedi is appointed 

as Managing Director of the company consequently resulting the change of his designation from the post of 

director.  

 

Ms. Manisha Makhija is appointed as the new Company Secretary of the company designated as Deputy Company 

Secretary. 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

• In accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) read with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the KMP’s of the 

Company as on date are- 

 

S. No. Name of the Key Managerial Personnel Designation 

1. Mr. Konark Trivedi Managing Director 

2. Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra Chief Financial Officer 

3. Ms. Manisha Makhija Company Secretary 

 

Except as mentioned above, there are no changes in the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company.  



 

 

The summary of the Board & Committee Composition, Particulars of Directors, number of meetings attended by 

each Board Member: 

 

A. Board Composition:- 

 

Composition and Category of Directors as of March 31, 2022 is as follows: 

Category No. of Directors 

Executive Directors 3 

Non-Executive Director 1 

 

Particulars of Director: 

S. No. Name of Directors Category 

1 Mr. Konark Trivedi Executive Director – CEO 

2 Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra Executive Director – CFO 

3 Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma Executive Director – CTO 

4 Mr. Satish Bhanu Trivedi Non-Executive Director 

 

B. Board Meetings: 

 

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM during the year 2021-22: 

Name of Directors No. of Board meeting attended Last AGM attendance (Y/N) 

Mr. Konark Trivedi 4 Yes 

Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra 17 Yes 

Mr. Satish Bhanu Trivedi 17 Yes 

Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma 17 Yes 

 

Number of Board Meetings held: 

There were Seventeen Board Meetings held during the year as per below stated dates: - 

1 12 April 2021 

2 15 April 2021 

3 20 May 2021 

4 25 May 2021 

5 16 June 2021 

6 20 July 2021 

7 12 August 2021 

8 23 August 2021 

9 30 August 2021 

10 28 September 2021 

11 26 October 2021 

12 13 December 2021 



 

 

13 29 December 2021 

14 15 February 2022 

15 21 February 2022 

16           14 March 2022 

17           16 March 2022   

 

C. Board Committee Meetings: 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility committee 

There were Four CSR committee meeting held during the year as below: - 

1 25 May 2021 

2 23 August 2021 

3 28 September 2021 

4 25 January 2022 

 

 

D. Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 

 

Ms. Manisha Makhija  -  Company Secretary 

 
 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Company has constituted the following Statutory Committees of the Board of Directors as on September 05, 

2022. 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE; 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was constituted with the requirement of the Section 177 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

 

The Composition of the Audit Committee is as of September 05, 2022 is as follows –  

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

MR. RANJIT DATTA Chairman Non-Executive & Independent Director 

MR. BARATHY SUNDARAM Member Non-Executive & Independent Director 

MR. KONARK TRIVEDI Member Managing Director 

 

2. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Company has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee pursuant to the provisions of Section 

178(5) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as of September 05, 2022 is as follows- 

 

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

MR. AJAY KALAYIL CHACKO Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director 

MR. BARATHY SUNDARAM Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

MR. KONARK TRIVEDI Member Managing Director 

 

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee pursuant to the provisions of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies 

Act 2013. 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as of September 05, 2022 is as follows:- 

Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 

MR. BARATHY SUNDARAM Chairperson Non-Executive Independent Director 

MR. AJAY KALAYIL CHACKO Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

MR. RANJIT DATTA Member Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE 

OF THEIR DUTIES 

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not 

applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to appointment of Directors, 

payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and 

other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. However as on date the 

company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
The Company is in process of finding out the suitable persons for the appointment as an Independent Directors as 
the said provisions became applicable to the Company as per the recent audit conducted for the period ending on 
31.03.2022. However as on date the company has appointed the independent directors as per the requirement of 
law. 
 
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES: 

Your Company has no associate or joint venture company. The Company has below Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:- 
 

1. Shiva Profiles Private Limited 
2. Frog Tele Private Limited 
3. Frog Profiles Private Limited 
4. Pics Jump Academy Private Limited (Formally known as Frog Jump Academy Private Limited) – Till 30-09-

2021 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 a statement containing the salient features 
of financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form No. AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of 
the Company. 
 
 



 

 

As on date the list of Subsidiary Companies are as under: 
1. Frog Tele Private Limited 
2. Shiva Profiles Private Limited 
3. Frog Services Private Limited 

 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO: 
Information required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 is given to this report (Annexure II). 
 
REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES & JOINT VENTURE 

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which form part of the Annual Report. Further, a 
statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of our consolidated subsidiaries in the 
prescribed format AOC-1 is annexed as “Annexure – III” to the Board Report. The statement also provides details 
of performance, financial position of each of the subsidiaries. 
 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

Your Company complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to Board Meetings 
and General Meetings respectively specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
 
DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 

AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

Your Company has formulated and adopted a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. During the 
year under report, no complaint relating to sexual harassment was received by the Company. 
 
DEVELOPMENT & IMPLEMENTATION RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

In the opinion of Board, there is no risk element which may threaten the existence of the Company. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

Industry Structure & Developments:  

1. Frog Cellsat is part of telecom equipment manufacture category and has been consistently performing as a 

leader in the Repeater and allied equipments in India. Frog Cellsat has a brand value and known for Quality and 

competitiveness; 

2. Frog Cellsat has been exploring the International market during the past years and quite successful. 

 

Opportunities & Threats: 

1. Frog Cellsat being leader in its field do not foresee any major threats, which may affect its business and / or 

operations but being into the technology driven Industry, company has to be continuously work towards up 

gradation of all process/production facility, R & D set up; 

2. Frog Cellsat see lot of opportunity in Indian market and also exploring to expanding in international arena. 

 

Segment / Product wise performance: 

1. Frog Cellsat is into repeater, in building coverage solutions, mobile network accessories and allied products and 

operate from factory at Dehradun & Noida, therefore the segment wise reporting is not applicable to the 

company; 



 

 

2. Outlook – management do not foresee any negative impact on the Industry and it seems to be going in right 

direction; 

3. Risks and concerns – Frog Cellsat constantly keeping watch on all related risks and keep taking appropriate 

steps and controls under various department level to minimize the risks. Company do not see any material 

risks, which require explanations. 

 

Internal control systems: 

Company has adequate internal controls commensurate with its size. 

 
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Pursuant to the requirements as prescribed in Section 134(3)(p) the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 
has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance as collective body on parameters such as Board 
Composition, Structure, Functioning of Board and its Committee, relation between Board and Management. 
 
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
As required under section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm 
that:- 

• The applicable Accounting Standards have been followed in preparation of annual accounts; 

• The  accounting  policies  selected were  applied  consistently  and  the  judgments  and  estimates made 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the State of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March, 2022; 

• Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; 

• The Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

• Internal financial controls have laid down by the company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; 

• Company has proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively; 

 
GENERAL DISCLOSURES: 

• For the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has transferred profit of Rs. 8,95,73,000/- 
(less of dividend declared during the year) to Reserves. 

• No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of financial year 2020-21 and the date 
of this report which may affect the financial position of the Company.  

• During the year under review, your Company was not required to maintain any cost records under 
provisions of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

• No significant and material order has been passed by the regulator/court/tribunal which may impact the 
going concern and company’s operations in future.  

• The Company has established process to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate key financial, operational, 
business & compliance risks. 

• No fraud has been reported by auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

• The Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting to be followed 
by the Company and such internal financial controls were operating effectively. 

• During the year, company has not received any complaints from shareholders or investors. 

• There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 during the year as at the end of the financial year. 

• Your director state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
 
 



 

 

a) Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting rights or otherwise. 
b) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares and issue of shares under ESOP scheme to the employees of the Company. 
c) Buy-back of equity shares from existing Equity Shareholders. 
d) Issue of Bonus Shares. 

 
VALUATION 
The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the 
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof – Not 
Applicable. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Directors take this opportunity to express thanks to various departments of the Central and State Government, 
Bankers, Material Suppliers, Customers and Shareholders for their continued support and guidance. 
 
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedicated efforts put in by the employees of the 
Company at all levels. 
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Frog Cellsat Limited 
 
 
s/d- 
Konark Trivedi 
Managing Director 
 
Place: London  
Date: 23-09-2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

Annexure I 
Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties (AOC – 2) 

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 – AOC-2] 
This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with 
related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 
Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2022, which 
were not at arm's length basis. 
 
Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis 
The details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis for the year ended March 31, 
2022 are as follows:- 
Name of transaction(s)                                                                31st March, 2022  
                                                                                                                         (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Payment for Manpower cost and Installation services    
Shiva Profiles Private Limited                            241.90  
Frog Services Private Limited            1625.96 
 
Interest received on loan 
Frog Tele Private Limited                               6.84 
Frog Jump Academy Private Limited                 0.22 
 
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel 
      
Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma, Director              31.79 
 
Loan Given 
Frog Tele Private Limited                            80.00 
Frog Jump Academy Private Limited                0.50 
 
Rent Expenses 
Frog Profiles Private Limited                  0.20 
 
Rent received 
Frog Profiles Private Limited                 0.34 
Frog Tele Private Limited                              0.40 
Shiva Profiles Private Limited                 0.34 
Frog Services Private Limited                 5.10 
 
Consultancy Paid 
Mr. Satish Bhanu Trivedi, Director                                                                 4.00 
Mrs. Rekha Trivedi                                                                                            6.00 
Mr. Subhash Kumar Kaushik                                                                           7.50 
Mrs. Anita Kaushik                                                                                            7.50 
Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra, Director                                                                    15.05  
 
Fixed Assets Sales 
ARDE Home Private Limited               4.38 
 
Raw Material Purchase 
Task Cellular Limited                                                                                  2692.43 



 

 

Outstanding Balances as at the year-end: 
 
Frog Tele Private Limited    
-Loan            160.00  
Frog Jump Academy Private Limited    
-Loan                 5.20 
Frog Services Private Limited    
-Trade Payables            206.00 
Task Cellular Limited, London 
-Trade Payables                                                                                             328.89 
Mr. Charan Jeet Kalra, Director 
-Trade Payables                                                                                                 1.21                                               
Mr. Satish Bhanu Trivedi, Director 
-Trade Payables                                                                                                 0.60 
Mrs. Rekha Trivedi   
-Trade Payables                                                                                                 0.90 
Mrs. Anita Kaushik 
-Trade Payables                                                                                                 1.13 
Mr. Subhash Kumar Kaushik 
-Trade Payables                                                                                                 1.13 
Frog Tele Private Limited 
-Security Deposits given                                                                              295.00 
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Frog Cellsat Limited 
 
 
 
s/d- 
Konark Trivedi 
Managing Director 
 
Place: London 
Date: 23-09-2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Disclosure of Particulars pursuant to Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
Annexure II 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:  
Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at all levels. All efforts are made to conserve and 
optimize use of energy continuous monitoring, improvement in maintenance and distribution systems and through 
improved operational techniques.  
 
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form B below: 
 
FORM B 
Research and Development  
The major achievement by the Company due to their continuous Research and Development activities is 
indigenization of Tooling, improvements in the manufacturing processes and operational procedures and 
development of new products. Research and Development activity is given the highest priority by the Company. 
 
Expenditure on R & D 
The Research and Development cost is reflected in note 40 to the Notes to the financial statements for the period 
ended 31st March 2022 and other related R & D cost are reflected in respective expenses heads in financial 
statements for the period as below: - 
                                                                                      Rs. in Lakhs 
Employees benefit expenses   Rs. 135.86  
Other expenses     Rs.   15.47 
 
Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 

Efforts, in brief, made towards 
technology absorption, adaptation and 
innovation 

Updating of Technology is a Continuous process, absorption 
implemented and adapted by the Company for innovation. Efforts are 
continuously made to develop new products required in telecom 
industry. 

Benefits derived as a result of the above 
efforts   

Company has been able to successfully indigenize some of critical 
parts of the product to a large extent and successfully developed new 
products by virtue of technology absorption, adaptation and 
innovation. 

In case of imported technology 
(imported during the last 5 years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year) the information may be 
furnished 

Not Applicable 

 
C.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
The Foreign Exchange outgo and foreign exchange earned by the Company during the year are detailed in Note No. 
32, 33 and 34 of other Notes to the Financial Statements.  
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Frog Cellsat Limited 
 
s/d- 
Konark Trivedi 
Managing Director 
Place: London  
Date: 23-09-2022.   



 

 

Salient features of the Financial Statements of our Consolidated Subsidiaries  
Annexure III 

 
Form AOC-1 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 
ventures 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary Frog Tele Private Limited 

2. 
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding company’s reporting period 

April-March 2022 

3. 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

N.A. 

4. Share capital Rs. 1,00,000 

5. Reserves & surplus Rs. 1,14,06,900 

6. Total assets Rs. 5,73,74,600 

7. Total Liabilities Rs. 5,73,74,600 

8. Investments Rs. 4,11,99,700 

9. Turnover NIL 

10. Profit before taxation Rs. (19,52,500) 

11. Provision for taxation Rs. (4,09,600) 

12. Profit after taxation Rs. (15,42,900) 

13. Proposed Dividend NIL 

14. % of shareholding 100% 

 
 
  



 

 

 
Form AOC-1 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 
ventures 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 
 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary Shiva Profiles Private Limited 

2. 
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 
the holding company’s reporting period 

April-March 2022 

3. 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

N.A. 

4. Share capital Rs. 1,00,000 

5. Reserves & surplus Rs. 7,07,57,200 

6. Total assets Rs. 7,29,33,600 

7. Total Liabilities Rs. 7,29,33,600 

8. Investments NIL 

9. Turnover Rs. 2,05,00,000 

10. Profit before taxation Rs. 1,20,19,900 

11. Provision for taxation Rs. 25,45,000 

12. Profit after taxation Rs. 94,74,900 

13. Proposed Dividend NIL 

14. % of shareholding 100% 

 
  



 

 

 
Form AOC-1 

 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 
ventures 

 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 
 

S. No. Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary Frog Profiles Private Limited 

2. 
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding company’s reporting period 

April-March 2022 

3. 
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

N.A. 

4. Share capital Rs. 1,00,000 

5. Reserves & surplus Rs. 72,45,400 

6. Total assets Rs. 74,03,600 

7. Total Liabilities Rs. 74,03,600 

8. Investments Rs. 69,39,000 

9. Turnover Rs. 3,80,000 

10. Profit before taxation Rs. (42,500) 

11. Provision for taxation NIL 

12. Profit after taxation Rs. (42,500) 

13. Proposed Dividend NIL 

14. % of shareholding 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

ANNEXURE -IV 

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL 

YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2020 

1. BRIEF OUTLINE OF CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY 

 

Frog Cellsat Limited (“the Company”) aims to improve the health of all people. Through its business, the 
Company makes an important contribution to society, through our innovative healthcare products, 
targeting unmet medical needs. 
 
The CSR Policy identifies and supports programs aimed at: 

✓ Health care  
✓ Education  
✓ Ensuring environmental sustainability 
✓ Women Empowerment 
✓ Betterment of weaker Society 
 

The CSR Policy can be accessed on the Company’s website mentioned as under: www.frogcellsat.com  

 

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE 

Sl. 
No. 

 
Name of Director 

Designation / 
Nature of Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year 

1. Mr. Konark Trivedi Director and CEO 4 4 

2. Mr. Satish Bhanu Trivedi Director 4 4 

 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 

the board are disclosed on the website of the company:  

The weblink, where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 

are disclosed, is as under: www.frogcellsat.com   

 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):- 
Not Applicable 
 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any:- Not Applicable 

 

Sl. No. Financial Year 
Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial 
years (in Rs) 

Amount required to be setoff 
for the financial year, if 

any (in Rs) 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 



 

 

 

6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5):- Rs. 3,83,42,638.67 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 7,66,852.77 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Rs. 

29,39,184.42 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Rs. 45,00,000.00 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. -7,93,962.81 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:- 
 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year. 
(in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount 
Date of 
transfer 

Name of the fund Amount Date of transfer 

45,00,000 NIL - - - - 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year 2021-22:   Not Applicable 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule VII 

to the Act 

Local area 
(Yes/No). 

Location of 
the project. 

State/ 
District 

Project 
duration. 

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 
financial 
Year (in 

Rs.) 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 

the project as 
per Section 

135(6) (in Rs.) 

Mode of 
Imple- 

mentation 
-Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through 
Implementing 

Agency 
 

Name/ 
Registration 

Number 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from the list 
of activities in 
Schedule VII to 

the Act 

Local 
area 

(Yes / 
No). 

Location 
of the 

project. 
State/ 
District 

Amount 
spent for 

the project 
(in Rs.) 

Mode of 
Imple- 

mentation -
Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing 

Agency Name/ 
Registration Number 

1 
Jivan Jyot 

Foundation 

Opening Schools, 
College, 

University, Hostel 
and other social 

services 

No Gujarat 10,00,000 Direct 

Registered Under 
Bombay Public Trusts 

Art, 1950 (XXIV of 1950) 
Vide. Reg. No. 

F/5099/Ahmedabad 
Dated: 21st August, 1995 

 
CSR Activity Reg. No.: 

CSR00006563 

2 
Jivan Jyot 

Foundation 

Opening Schools, 
College, 

University, Hostel 
and other social 

services 

No Gujarat 20,00,000 Direct 

Registered Under 
Bombay Public Trusts 

Art, 1950 (XXIV of 1950) 
Vide. Reg. No. 

F/5099/Ahmedabad 
Dated: 21st August, 1995 

 
CSR Activity Reg. No.: 

CSR00006563 

3 
Jivan Jyot 

Foundation 

Opening Schools, 
College, 

University, Hostel 
and other social 

services 

No Gujarat 15,00,000 Direct 

Registered Under 
Bombay Public Trusts 

Art, 1950 (XXIV of 1950) 
Vide. Reg. No. 

F/5099/Ahmedabad 
Dated: 21st August, 1995 

 
CSR Activity Reg. No.: 

CSR00006563 

 TOTAL    45,00,000   

 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 45,00,000/- 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable 

 



 

 

S. No. Particular Amount 

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 0 

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 0 

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0 

4 
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any 

0 

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: - Not Applicable 

S. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 

Year 

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 

 (in Rs.) 

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any 

Amount remaining to 
be spent in succeeding 
financial years. (in Rs.) 

    Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
Transfer 

 

        

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):  

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 

through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their 

address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 

capital asset). 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 

135(5): Not Applicable 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Frog Cellsat Limited 
 
s/d- 
Konark Trivedi 
Managing Director 
Place: London, 
Date: 23-09-2022.  
 
 



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
To the members of Frog Cellsat Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial statements   
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Frog Cellsat Limited which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31st, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information in which are included the financial statements for the year ended. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2022, and profit, and its cash flow statement for the year ended 
on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
 
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial statements   
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 



 

 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statement that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters 
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in 



 

 

the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
 
Report on Other legal Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from 

our examination of those books; 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of account; 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31st, 2022, and taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31st, 2022, from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f) This report includes a report with respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial controls over financial reporting 

of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls in terms of sub-section (3) (i) of section 143 of the 

companies Act, 2013, in the “Annexure-B” of the report.  

 

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

 

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses. 

c) There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Company. 

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 19 to 

the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  



 

 

 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 19 to 

the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including 

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 

(iii) Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) contain any material misstatement. 
 

e) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act. 

 

 

Rajan K. Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN 005945C      

 

                                              

Rajan Gupta                                                              

(Partner) 

M.NO - 074696 

             

Place:  Ghaziabad        

Dated: 14.07.2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

Referred to Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements of the Company 

for the year ended March 31st, 2022, we report that: 

 

1. Property, Plant & Equipments under Clause 3(i) of the Order-: 

 

(a)  The Company has maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipments and intangible assets during the year; 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, 
plant and equipment at reasonable intervals; 
       No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the Company. 
  

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or Intangible 
assets or both during the year. 
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

 

 

2. Inventories under clause 3(ii) of the order-: 
 

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management 
were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the 
book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory for each class of 
inventory. 
 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 
rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.  

 
 
 
 

3. Investments, Guarantee / Security, Loans or Advances under clause 3(iii) of the order-: 
 

(a) The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or any other parties, except the company has given a loan to its subsidiary companies during the year; 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted 
by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the investments made and the terms and 
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not 
prejudicial to the company’s interest; 
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular. 



 

 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. 
 

(e) The company has not any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans; 
therefore, no disclosures required under clause 3(iii)(e) of the order; 
 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 
 

4. Compliance of provisions of Secs. 185 & 186 under clause 3(iv) of the order: - 
 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under 
Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as 
specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given and investments made. 

 
5. Public Deposits under clause 3(v) of the order: -  
 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 
during the year and accordingly the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder are not applicable to the company; 

 
6. Cost Records under clause 3(vi) of the order: - 
 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been 
specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the 
activities carried on by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable 

 

7. Statutory Dues under clause 3(vii) of the order: - 

 

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 
account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Goods & Service 
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the 
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months 
from the date on when they become payable. 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no amounts payable in respect of income tax, 
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not 
been deposited on account of any disputes. 

 

8. Unrecorded Income under clause 3(viii) of the order: - 
 

(a) There are no any transactions which are not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961; 

 
 
 
 



 

 

9. Repayment of Dues under clause 3(ix) of the Order: - 

 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

  
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or government authority.  
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has taken term loan form the bank and has been utilised for the 
purpose for which it was taken. 
 

(d) Company has not raised any fund on short term basis which have been utilized for long term purposes; 
 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable; 
 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report 
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries 
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

 

10. Use of money raised through issue of own shares under clause 3(x) of the order: 

 

(a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had not raised 
money by way of further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(b)     Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 
11. Fraud under clause 3(xi) of the order: - 

 
 

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report 

that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 
 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

 

12. Nidhi Company under clause 3(xii) of the order: -  

 
 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 

 



 

 

 

13. Related Party Transaction under clause 3(xiii) of the order: - 

 
 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the 
Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards and the details of the related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards. (Refer note No. 36 to the Financial statements) 

 

14. Internal Audit under clause 3(xiv) of the order: - 
 

(a) According to information and explanation given to us, Company is not required to do Internal Audit, 
therefore clause 3(xiv) is not applicable to the company; 

 
 

15. Non-cash transactions with Directors under clause 3(xv) of the order: 
 

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 

 
16. Registration u/s 45-IA of RBI Act under clause 3(xvi) of the order: 

 

(a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d)  According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does 
not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.  

 
 

17. Cash Losses under clause 3(xvii) of the Order: 

 

(a)  The company has not any cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding financial year; 
therefore, the clause is not applicable; 

 

18. Auditor’s resignation under clause 3(xviii) of the order: 

 

(a) No any resignation of Statutory auditors during the year, therefore clause is not applicable. 
 
19. Financial Position under clause 3(xix) of the order: 

 

(a) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 

of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 

that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 



 

 

all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 

Company as and when they fall due. 

 

20. CSR Compliance under clause 3(xx) of the order: 
 

(a) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, Clause is not applicable to the 
company 

 

 

 For Rajan K Gupta & Co. 

            Chartered Accountants 

            (FRN: 005945C) 

 

             Rajan Gupta 

             (Partner) 

             M. No. 074696 

 

             Place:  Ghaziabad 

            Date:   14.07.2022 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of Frog Cellsat 
Limited 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”)  

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Frog Cellsat Limited (“the Company”) as 

of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 

that date.  

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
Auditors’ Responsibility  

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 

to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects.  

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error.  

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

financial statements.  



 

 

  
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial statements. 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Financial statements is a 

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles.  

 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 

company; and  

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial 

statements    

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.  

 
Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these Financial statements   and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting with reference to these Financial statements   were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

  

 For Rajan K Gupta & Co. 

 Chartered Accountants 

(FRN: 005945C) 

 

Rajan Gupta 

(Partner) 

M. No. 074696 

Place:  Ghaziabad 

Date:   14.07.2022  

UDIN: 22074696ARNUEP5527 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

FROG CELLSAT LIMITED                        Annexure - I 

Note to Accounts of the Financial Statements at year ending 31st March, 2022 

 

1. COMPANY INFORMATION 

Frog Cellsat Limited was originally incorporated in New Delhi as “Frog Cellsat Private Limited” on July 12, 2004 under 

the Companies Act, 1956 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar of Companies, National Capital 

Territory of Delhi & Haryana. The Company was subsequently converted into a public company and consequently 

the name was changed to “Frog Cellsat Limited” Vide fresh certificate of incorporation dated March 25, 2014 issued 

by the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana. The Company has applied vide letter 

dated May 22, 2018 for voluntary delisting of its shares from National Stock Exchange (NSE) at Institutional Trade 

Platform (ITP), which was listed on May 2, 2014. The NSE has approved the delisting of company’s shares vide letter 

dated June 6, 2018.  

Company manufactures cost-effective in-building coverage solutions and mobile network accessories for mobile 

service providers and operators. The company caters to both domestic and international market. The company also 

provides installation and repair and maintenance services. 

 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION  

2.1 Statement of compliance  

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in 

India, under the historical cost conversion on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards 

as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of Companies (Account) Rules 

2014, the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). 

 

2.2 Basis of measurement  

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as stated otherwise. 

 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency  

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 

financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest rupees, except as stated otherwise. 

 

2.4 Current and non-current classification  

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.  

An asset is current when it is:  

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.  

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or  



 

 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period.  

All other assets are classified as non-current.  

A liability is current when:  

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.  

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.  

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or  

• There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period.  

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.  

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as noncurrent. 

 

2.5 Operating cycle  

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash 

equivalents. Based on the above definition and nature of business, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 

as less than 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 

2.6 Use of estimates and judgements  

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts 

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision 

to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 

 

2.7 Impact of Covid-19 (pandemic) 

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these financial 

statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, recoverable 

values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue recognition owing to changes in cost budgets of 

fixed price contracts, impact on leases and impact on effectiveness of its hedges. The Company has carried out this 

assessment based on available internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these 

financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and 

expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ 

from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements owing to the nature and duration of 

COVID-19.  

 

 



 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation  

3.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement  

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing 

the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item 

and restoring the site on which it is located.  

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted 

for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

 

3.1.2 Subsequent costs  

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that 

future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably.  

 

3.1.3 Derecognition  

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or 

upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 

comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are 

recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

3.1.4 Depreciation  

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful 

lives using the written down method and is generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant & equipment during the year is charged on pro-rata 

basis from/up to the date in which the asset is available for use/disposed.  

 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if 

appropriate. Based on evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful 

lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Where it is 

probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of 

the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a PPE along with its unamortized depreciable 

amount is charged off prospectively over the revised useful life determined by assessment. 



 

 

 

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide the depreciation on its assets: - 

Particulars Useful lives estimated by the management (Years) Useful lives as per Schedule II 

Factory Building 30 30 

Office Equipment 05 05 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 10 

Vehicles 08 08 

Plant & Machinery 15 15 

Testing Equipment’s 13 13 

IT Equipment’s 03 03 

 

3.1.5 Capital work in progress and Capital advances: 

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. 

Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are 

disclosed as Capital advances under Long-term Loans and Advances. 

 

3.2 Intangible assets and intangible assets under development and amortization  

 

3.2.1 Recognition and measurement  

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less 

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental 

expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.  

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that 

future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably.  

 

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as intangible assets 

under development till they are ready for their intended use.  

 

3.2.2 Derecognition  

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their 

disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds 

from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.  

 

 



 

 

 

3.2.3 Amortization  

Amortization is computed to write off the depreciable amount of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives 

using the written down method and is included in amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted 

if appropriate. 

 

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 

an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

3.4 Provisions and contingent liabilities 

The Company makes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event where the outflow of 

economic resources is probable and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. A disclosure is 

made for possible future obligations that may but probably will not require outflow of resources or where a reliable 

estimate cannot be made, as a contingent liability in the financial statements. 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated 

reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits 

is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate. 

 

3.4.1 Warranty provisions 

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are established 

using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management 

estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures. The timing of 

outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise. The Company accounts for the post-contract support / 

provision for warranty on the basis of the information available with the Management duly taking into account the 

current and past technical estimates. 

 

3.5 Revenue  

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the 

revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 

recognized: 

 



 

 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 

been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects GST on behalf of the government 

and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.  

 

Income from services 

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services 

are rendered.  The company collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit 

flowing to the company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.  

 

Interest 

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 

applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

 

3.6 Employee Benefits  

3.6.1 Short term employee benefits  

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term 

employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

in the period in which the employee renders the related services. Such obligations are measured on an 

undiscounted basis.  

 

3.6.2 Defined contribution plan  

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 

separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for 

contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefits expense in profit or loss in the 

period during which services are rendered by employees.  

 

The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to regional provident fund 

commissioner. The contributions to the fund for the year are recognized as expense and are charged to the profit 

or loss. 

 

3.6.3 Defined benefit plan  

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s 

liability towards gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plans.  



 

 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated separately by estimating the amount 

of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit 

is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan 

assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as 

at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are 

denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.  

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the 

calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past 

service costs. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they 

arise.  

 

3.6.4 Other long term employee benefits  

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences constitute other long term employee benefit. Cost of long-

term benefit by way of accumulating compensated absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated 

taking into account the pattern of availment of leave. In respect of encashment of leave, the defined benefit is 

calculated taking into account all types of decrements and qualifying salary projected up to the assumed date of 

encashment.  

The present value of obligations under such long-term benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation 

carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at period end. 

 

3.7 Foreign currency transactions and translation  

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates 

at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of 

the transaction.  

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the 

exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign 

currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-

monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 

exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

3.8 Income Tax  

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in profit or loss. Current 

tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 

and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.  

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 



 

 

purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when 

they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred 

tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, 

and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.  

 

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets 

are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 

benefit will be realized.  

 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The 

Company recognizes MAT credit available as deferred tax asset only to the extent it is probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of MAT credit to be utilised during the specified period, i.e., the 

period for which such credit is allowed to be utilised. 

 

3.9 Earning per share  

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders 

of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.  

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders 

of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity 

share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

3.10 Inventories  

- Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, 

materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 

finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, 

components, stores and spares is determined on moving weighted average method.  

- Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 

materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost of 

finished goods is determined on standard cost basis.  

- Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of purchase and other costs in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of traded goods is determined on weighted average basis.  

- Saleable scrap, whose cost is not identifiable, is valued at net realisable value.  

- Stores and Spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as 

inventories.  



 

 

- Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

 

3.11 Leases  

Where the company is lessee 

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 

ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease 

payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned 

between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liabilities so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset or the useful life envisaged in 

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, whichever is lower. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the 

company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-

line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset, the lease term or the useful life envisaged in 

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, 

are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the statement of profit 

and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

3.12 Dividends  

Any dividend declared by Company is based on the profits available for distribution as reported in the statutory 

financial statements of Company prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India. 

Indian law permits the declaration and payment of dividend out of profits for the year or previous financial year(s) 

as stated in the statutory financial statements of Company prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles in India after providing for depreciation in accordance with the provisions of Schedule II to 

the Companies Act. However, in the absence or inadequacy of the said profits, it may declare dividend out of free 

reserves, subject to certain conditions as prescribed under the Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

3.13 Borrowing costs  

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the borrowings and 

exchange differences to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.  



 

 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other 

borrowing costs are charged in the statement of profit and loss in the year they occur. 

 

3.14 Investments 

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on 

which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-

term investments. 

 

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an 

individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value 

is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments. 

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or 

credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

 

3.15 Indirect Tax  

Goods and Service Tax  

– GST Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of Goods and Service Tax paid, except: 

 (i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 

which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, 

as applicable  

(ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.  

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 

payables in the balance sheet. 

 

3.16 Government Grants 

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that  

(i) the company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and  

(ii) the grant/subsidy will be received 

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of 

profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to 

compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in 

equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

Where the company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost. 

In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost, it is recognized at a nominal value. 



 

 

Government grants of the nature of promoters’ contribution are credited to capital reserve and treated as a part 

of the shareholders’ funds. 

 

3.17 Impairment of assets 

The Company assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any indication that any asset may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable 

amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its 

carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an 

impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication 

that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset 

is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. 

 

3.18 Recent accounting pronouncements 

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification, amended Schedule III of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 

2021.  

Some of the key amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies whose financial statements are 

required to comply with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:  

 

a. Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due 

to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.  

b. Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.  

c. Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and 

intangible asset under development.  

d. If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial 

institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.  

e. Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of 

arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in 

name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related 

parties, details of benami property held etc.  

f) Realignment of presentation of following financial statement captions:  

• Security deposits to be presented under other non-current assets (earlier: under loans)  

• Current maturities of long-term borrowings to be disclosed separately under borrowings (earlier: under 

other current liabilities)  

g) Disclosure of charges/ satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period along with 

details and reasons thereof  



 

 

h) Prescribed disclosures where loans/ advances in the nature of loans were granted to promoters, directors, 

KMPs and the related parties (as defined under 2013 Act), either severally or jointly with any other person 

that are: 

• Repayable on demand or  

• Without specifying any terms/ period of repayment  

i) Disclosure of prescribed ratios e.g. current ratio, debt-equity ratio (Explain items included in numerator and 

denominator and any change in the ratio >25% as compared to the preceding year)  

j) Disclosure of the following where borrowings are made from banks/ FI on the basis of security of current 

assets:  

• Whether quarterly returns/ statements of current assets filed with banks/ FI are in agreement with the 

books  

• Summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies (if any)  

k) Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or 

virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of financial 

statements.  

The Company is assessed the impact of these changes and will accordingly incorporate the same for the financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
To the members of Frog Cellsat Limited 
 

Report on the Consolidated financial statements  
 

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of M/s Frog Cellsat Limited which comprises 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.  
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2022, and profit, and its cash flow statement for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Information other than the Consolidated financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not 
include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated financial statements  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial  
 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 



 

 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 



 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the 
matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 

Report on Other legal Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, 
according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the 
Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting 
under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.  
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

appears from our examination of those books; 
 

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account; 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31st, 2022, and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31st, 2022, from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) This report includes a report with respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial controls over 

financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls in terms of sub-

section (3) (i) of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013, in the “Annexure-A” of the report.  
 

 

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 

 

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 

III. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

 



 

 

IV. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other persons or 

entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries.  
 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 

been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including 

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 

or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 

(iii) Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries, nothing has come to 

our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 

11 (e) contain any material misstatement. 

 

For and on behalf of  

Rajan K. Gupta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN 005945C       

 

                                              

Rajan Gupta                                                              

(Partner) 

M.NO. 074696 

             

Place:  Ghaziabad        

Dated: 14.07.2022 

  



 

 

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated financial statements of Frog 
Cellsat Limited 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”)  

 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Frog Cellsat Limited (“the Company”) as 

of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date.  

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
Auditors’ Responsibility  

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 

to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects.  

 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error.  



 

 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated financial statements.  

  
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial 

statements. 

 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial 

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 

and the preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles.  

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

 
(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and  

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated financial statements.  

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated 

financial statements   

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.  

 
Opinion  

 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial statements  and such internal financial controls 

over financial reporting with reference to these Consolidated financial statements  were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 



 

 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

 

 For Rajan K Gupta & Co. 

            Chartered Accountants 

            (FRN: 005945C) 

 

             Rajan Gupta 

             (Partner) 

             M. No. 074696 

 

             Place:  Ghaziabad 

            Date:   14.07.2022 

  

 UDIN: 22074696ARNXYJ9172 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 



 

 

SHORTER NOTICE OF 18th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held 

as under: 

 

Day:                Friday 

Date:                 30th September, 2022 

Time:                05:00 P.M.(IST) 

AGM Venue:    Office no. 406, D-35, Third Floor, Old Plot No. 2-A, Laxmi Nagar, East Delhi,        New Delhi-

110092 

 
 

TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: - 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approval and Adoption of Audited Financial Statements including Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 along with Directors’ Report and 
Auditors’ Report thereon:  
 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including Consolidated Financial 

Statements as on 31st March, 2022 and Profit  and Loss Account of the Company for the year ended 31st 

March, 2022, together with Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022, Notes to Financial 

Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Company do hereby adopt the Audited Financial Statements including 

Consolidated Financial Statements  as on 31st March, 2022, the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 

on that date along with Cash Flow Statement, Notes to Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and 

Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ending 31st March, 2022.”.  

 

 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Tarun Tularam Sharma (DIN- 08849614), who retires by rotation, 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s) as Ordinary 

Resolution(s): 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Tarun 

Tularam Sharma (DIN - 08849614), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being 

eligible, to offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the Company”  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. Regularization of Additional Director, Mrs. Sonal Trivedi (DIN - 00537922) 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s) as Ordinary 

Resolution(s): 

       

 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder and Article of Association of the Company, Mrs. 

Sonal Trivedi (DIN-00537922), who was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board on 3rd June, 

2022 and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of the Act, 

be and is hereby appointed as an Non - Executive Director of the Company who is liable to retire by rotation.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and 

are hereby severally authorized to sign the requisite forms / documents and to do all such acts, deeds and 

things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the 

aforesaid resolution and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act, 2013.” 

 

 

4. Regularization of Additional Independent Director, Mr. Barathy Sundaram (DIN - 01175376)  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s) as Ordinary 

Resolution(s): 

       

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and any other applicable provisions  of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, read 

with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Barathy 

Sundaram (DIN - 01175376), who was appointed as an Additional Independent Director on 19th August, 

2022 by the Board of Directors be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company, 

and to hold office for a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 19th August, 2022 to 18th August, 2027.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and 

are hereby severally authorized to sign the requisite forms / documents and to do all such acts, deeds and 

things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the 

aforesaid resolution and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act, 2013.” 

 

5. Regularization of Additional Independent Director, Mr. Ranjit Datta (DIN - 07121651) 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s) as Ordinary 

Resolution(s):       

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, read with 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Ranjit Datta (DIN 

- 07121651), who was appointed as an Additional Independent Director on 19th August, 2022 by the Board 



 

 

of Directors be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company, and to hold office for 

a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 19th August, 2022 to 18th August, 2027.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and 

are hereby severally authorized to sign the requisite forms / documents and to do all such acts, deeds and 

things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the 

aforesaid resolution and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act, 2013.” 

 

6. Regularization of Additional Independent Director, Mr. Ajay Kalayil Chacko (DIN - 05213596)  
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s) as Ordinary 

Resolution(s): 

       

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section149, 150, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, read with 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article of Association of the Company, Mr. Ajay Kalayil 

Chacko (DIN - 05213596), who was appointed as an Additional Independent Director on 01st September, 

2022 by the Board of Directors be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the company, 

and to hold office for a term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 01st September, 2022 to 31st August, 2027.  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and 

are hereby severally authorized to sign the requisite forms / documents and to do all such acts, deeds and 

things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the 

aforesaid resolution and make all such filings as are required under the Companies Act, 2013.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board 

For Frog Cellsat Limited 

Place: Noida (U.P.) 

Date: 23-09-2022        

 

 

Manisha Makhija 

        Company Secretary 

                    M.No – A56552 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

NOTES: 

 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXIES TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD DEPOSITED THE 
PROXY FORM (MGT – 11) AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER 
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING. 
 

2. Pursuant to provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as proxy on behalf of the members 
and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent, of the total 
share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person who shall not act 
as proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

 

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the meetings are 
requested, to the Company, a certified true copy of their Board Resolution passed in the Board 
Meeting of the respected Company, pursuing to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 authorizing 
their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.  

 

4. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
Special Business of the notice as set out above is annexed thereto. 

 

5. Members / Proxies should bring the Attendance Slips duly filled in and signed for attending the 
meeting.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013. 

 

Item No. 3,4,5 & 6 

 

The Board at its meeting held on 3rd June, 2022, appointed Mrs. Sonal Trivedi as an Additional Director with 

effect from such Board meeting date pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and 161 of Companies Act, 2013. 

Hence, she will hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

Further the Board at its meeting held on 19th August, 2022, appointed Mr. Barathy Sundaram and Mr. Ranjit 

Datta as an Additional Independent Directors and on 01 September, 2022, appointed Mr. Ajay Kalayil Chacko 

as an Additional Independent Directors with effect from such Board meetings dates pursuant to provisions of 

Section 149, 150, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, they will hold office up to the date of the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Company has received consent in writing to act as a Director in Form DIR-2 Pursuant to section 152(5) 

and rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 

 

The Board considers that their association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to 

avail their services as a Directors. Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution No. 5, 6, 7 & 8, in relation 

to appointment of Mrs. Sonal Trivedi, Mr. Mr. Barathy Sundaram, Mr. Ranjit Datta and Mr. Ajay Kalayil Chacko, 

respectively, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, except to the extent of their shareholdings, 

are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at in the Notice. 

 

By Order of the Board 

For Frog Cellsat Limited 

Place: Noida 

Date: 23-09-2022        

 

Manisha Makhija 

        Company Secretary 

                    ACS - 56552 

 

 

 


